

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

Annual Report & Financial Statements

2005/06 Season

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT

The 36th Annual General Meeting of the

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

will be held in the Clubrooms, Anderson Park Pavilion,

on Monday, 14 August, 2006 commencing at 7:30 PM

BUSINESS

- 1. Apologies
- 2. Minutes of the 35th Annual General Meeting, held on 29th August, 2005
- 3. Adoption of the Annual Report
- 4. Adoption of the Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet
- 5. Election of Officers:
 - o Patron
 - o President
 - o Senior Vice President
 - o Life Members see notice of motion below
 - Vice Presidents nomination of Paddy Marra by Brett Windley
 - Club Officers:
 - Honorary Treasurer
 - Honorary Secretary
 - Club Captain
 - Management Committee:
 - 8 elected persons of whom at least 1 shall be a female
 - Delegates to Cricket Wellington Annual General Meeting:
 - 5 required
 - o Honorary Auditor
- 6. Club Subscriptions for 2005/06 season
- 7. Notices of Motion Proposed by the Committee that Grant Coppersmith be elected Life Member of Wellington Collegians Cricket Club, Inc.

In support of proposal – Grant Coppersmith joined the Club in 1978 and while he only played a played a handful of games at "mid-grade" level, he joined the Club Committee in 1979 running raffles and doing fundraising. He was Club Secretary from 1980 to 1983, then Club Treasurer from 1983 to 1998 and then served as Club President from 2001 to 2002. During his time in these various roles the Club won a number of Club & Senior Championships.

8. General Business

Patron:

The Most Honourable Reverend Sir Paul Reeves GCMC, GCVO, QSO

Life Members:

D R Davis, Miss B Fuller, Mrs A Garrett, K R MacDonald, L D Macer, T G McMahon, J S Perkins, R C Pope, E J Stewart, R Swan, I N Taylor, G L Whyte MBE

President:

B E Windley

Immediate Past President:

G R Carruthers

Past Presidents:

D R Davis, Mrs A Garrett, J A L Gibson QC, J G Revell, C J Taylor, I N Taylor, B Waddle, G E Coppersmith

Senior Vice President:

A D McBeth

Vice Presidents:

D B Alabaster, W A Arcus, R T Barber, K W Burke, D Deva, M E Garrett, D T Grainger, G Hopping, D L Hunt, R D Kinsella, A R MacGibbon, D Macer, A D McBeth, C C Monigatti, R Moses, B O'Brien, B Patel, G R Phillips, G M Russell, P W Steele, B R Taylor, G Thomas, J B Tucker, R H Vance, P R Wilson, A D Wilkinson, B E Windley, A C Yule

Honorary Auditor Sugden Honorary Treasurer W Sadler / R Standish Honorary Secretary G E Marriott

Club Captain D Deva

Management Committee:

Paddy Marra (Chairman), Nigel Royfee (Junior Club), Ryan Standish, Tania McCord, Mark Borroughs, Amy Burgess, Nick Whittington, Garrick Sutherland and Glen Neal.

Delegates to Cricket Wellington Inc:

Paddy Marra, Dilip Deva, Brett Windley, Elizabeth Scurr, Mark Borroughs

Junior Club Liaison: Nigel Royfee

Selectors: Mark Burroughs, Brett Maguire, Dilip Deva

Bar Manager: D Deva Gear Custodians: D Deva/R Swan Results Steward: A C Yule

Minutes of the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Wellington Collegians Cricket Club held on Monday 29th August 2005 at the Clubrooms, Anderson Park.

Meeting commenced at 7.35pm, chaired by Paddy Marra.

Apologies

Received from: Matt Johnston, Phil Bedford, Wainui Bedford, Chris Monigitti, Ian Taylor, Carl McKenzie, Robert Pope, Senthil Selvaraham, Larry Macer, Ted Stewart, and Brett Maguire.

Minutes of the 34th Annual General Meeting

The minutes of the 34th Annual General Meeting were accepted and held as a true and correct record.

P Marra/D Deva

Adoption of the Annual Report

Paddy congratulated the 2C team who went through the season without a loss and to the Premier Junior Club side who also achieved the same feat. Congratulations were given to James Franklin for his performances in the Black Caps and special note was made of the fantastic hat trick and his near permanent status in the test team.

He went on to talk about the objectives the committee had proposed for the season; Primarily getting the senior men into Pearce cup - work has already begun with preseason training under way and we are in the process of hiring of a coach - Ian Fisher from the UK and the recruitment of new players one of which being Taraia Robin who has transferred from Hawke's Bay. He also spoke of the proposal by Cricket Wellington to change the senior/senior reserve competitions this season. The season will start October 15th with the 7 weekends of one day cricket – the initial games to be played on artificial wickets, 2 day games will follow with a 20/20 competition to be held on the weekend of January 21/22. The final of the Pearce Cup will be held at the Basin Reserve with the Hazlet Trophy final to be held on the best available ground.

It was reported that there was a surplus of approximately \$23,500 spread evenly across junior and senior club.

Paddy reported that the Club had been successful in applying for smaller grants as apposed to larger ones and will continue to do so in the forthcoming season. A coaching grant of approximately \$10,000 will be applied for to cover the costs of Ian Fisher who not only will be coaching the seniors, but will also take on the junior coaching co-ordinator role.

Paddy wanted to acknowledge and thank the following for their support; NZ Community Trust, Lion Foundation, Capital Ford (formerly Avery Ford), Wholly Bagels, for their grants and sponsorship during the season and to Scott McHardy, Mal McLean and Wainui Bedford for their services to the club.

The Annual Report was duly adopted.

P Marra/G Neal

Financial Statements

The financial statements showing a surplus for the year of \$23,479 were duly adopted.

P Marra/D Deva

Election of Officers

The following officers were duly elected.

Patron President Senior Vice President Secretary Treasurer Club Captain Management Committee	Sir Paul Reeves Brett Windley Alistair McBeth Emma Marriott Elizabeth Scurr Dilip Deva Tania McCord, Mark Borroughs, Ryan Standish, Paddy Marra, Amy Burgess, Nick Whittington, Garrick Sutherland and Glen Neal.
Delegates to Cricket Wellington AGM	Paddy Marra, Dilip Deva, Brett Windley, Elizabeth Scurr, Mark Borroughs.
	Oraham Orandan

Hon Auditor Graham Sugden

Club Subscriptions

The subscriptions will remain the same this season with subs been scaled down the grades and with the time of the year that they are paid.

Sally Morrison questioned whether people would be able to receive caps when they have paid up, the committee will look into it.

General Business

It was reported that Simon Sharland and Greg McDonald's performances need adding to the honour's board as each took 7 catches as a wicket keeper in a match and Sandy Yule reported that in 2000/01 Bojan Cvetkovic took 7 wickets in a game, this also needed recording on the honours board.

The club is to hold a working bee on September 4th to spruce up the clubrooms.

Brian Steele raised question about sponsorship from the Speights Ale House. As yet they have not offered us anything but Taraia may be able to aid us in this. He also wished to thank Mal McLean for his work on the committee.

Dilip thanked Will Sadler for all his work as Treasurer and he also thanked Ryan Standish for the great work he has done taking over and for the printing of the annual reports. He went on to thank Brett Windley and Paddy Mara for their work on the committee and final thanks went to the retiring Scott McHardy for all he has done for the club. Ryan Standish thanked Dilip for the great work he does as club captain.

Meeting closed: 8.10pm

PRESIDENTS REPORT

Brett Windley

It has been a season of mixed fortunes. The senior men's side performed very well and all but made it back to the Pierce Cup division and managed the feat of defeating outright the eventual champions Naenae in a 2 day match. The Senior women's side never really came up to the level we had hoped but were a side that was severely effected by late withdrawals and absentees at key times during the season. And in the heart of the club there were some steady results without winning a championship.

On a very positive note we were able to enjoy the success of Jimmy Franklin whose performances at the international level have continued to improve and be more consistent and which reached a highlight at the end of the season with his maiden test century against South Africa. Congratulations Jimmy.

On another positive note, the Junior club continues to run very efficiently and with excellent playing numbers. Well done to those volunteers who make this happen.

We contracted the services of Ian Fisher again this season and his presence was felt not only on the field but also with the coaching that he did. We have had very good feedback on his coaching efforts.

We will be loosing the services of the club chairman Paddy Marra this year. Paddy has done such incredible work for the club over the last few years and it will be my pleasure to nominate Paddy for Vice President at the AGM. More will be said of Paddy's contribution at the meeting.

As seems to happen on a regular basis we will be loosing the services of some hard working committee members. Ryan Standish, Emma Marriot and Mark Burroughs and all about to embark on their OE (or have already left) and Elizabeth Scurr will be leaving the committee. We wish you well on your travels and look forward to seeing again in the future back at Collegians. Thank you for your input this year. You are part of committee that has helped make this club certainly one of the best administered clubs in Wellington.

At the time of writing there is a move to restructure the senior men's club cricket by opening up the one day competition to 12 twelve teams to be run at the beginning of the season. The top 6 (or 8) teams would then go on to compete in the 2 day competition. This is of great importance to us and one which a sub committee has been working hard on and leading the way for this change. Despite giving more clubs a chance to play in the top division, it will also ensure that the final 6 (or 8) clubs will have earned the place in the top division on merit.

As noted earlier the women's teams did struggle this year. I think there needs to be some more advanced planning, organising and support at the beginning of the season by the committee and to have positions and teams ready to run right at the start of the season. We did field 3 women's teams this year, one of the few clubs that could boast that.

I have enjoyed my 2 years as President and have been most impressed with the administration of the club and the committee that have made this work. The foundation is in place, the club is in good heart and it won't be long before we see the performances reflected on the playing field that will lift us to higher honours.

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

Paddy Marra

The 2005/06 season was another of those "almost" seasons with the Senior team getting so close to promotion, having beaten the eventual winners Naenae twice during the season, but because of dropped matches early in the season they finished second by less than the points from a 1-day win and then having the final play off match washed out. For a team that had a lot of personnel changes to cope with at the start of season, it took a while to gel as a team. There were then some marvelous performances later in the season and I was privileged to be at Anderson Park the day that T (Taraia Robin) and the Dr (Dave Rankin) put on their 220 run partnership in 29 overs, with Taraia's 168 believed to be the highest individual score on Anderson Park.

The Women's team also has several personnel changes with a couple of key players including last year's captain (Amanda Cooper) leaving the club just before the season started. This substantially weakened the team and left them struggling in the competition despite some valiant efforts by Elizabeth Scurr and Annabel O'Reilly. The extra pressures on players having to step up from the Super 8 teams, also put pressure on the performances of those teams.

All of our other men's teams generally finished mid table, but I must make mention of the 2A team that was ably led by Nate Brown. This was a young team, with a couple of 'older heads'. The team struggled at the start of the season and then with a bit of encouragement and a win, went on to do very well with a couple of standout century performances by Jeremy Riddell and some dogged batting and bowling performances by various others throughout the rest of the season saw a great turn around in fortunes.

There were also numerous other very good performances that are mentioned throughout this Annual Report.

Club Cricket in Wellington

Over the past few years I have had two general concerns about the state of club cricket in Wellington, one is funding and the other is the general state of Club cricket. By this I mean the actual state of club cricket and the participation in club cricket. For some time Cricket Wellington has had an agenda to 'strengthen' cricket at the highest level. However, I am not always sure that this is consistent with the good of club cricket which is about participation as well as excellence (not just excellence), and through participation at higher levels players get the chance to perform and improve.

I have not been convinced that moving to 'district cricket' of combining clubs at Pearce Cup level will be good for club cricket as a whole. I would prefer to see club cricket spread around all the districts and suburbs of Wellington as each club is a community asset and gains its strength from its local community. Club players want to able to practice and play in their local community and in many cases if you put these players into a more demanding environment they will rise to the occasion. Hence we as a Club have put forward to Wellington the concept of a 12 team senior competition which will involve the 4 clubs with 1st teams in the Hazlett Trophy. We believe that this will ensure that a broader range of clubs survive in the greater Wellington community and that this will stop the annual movement of good players away from Hazlett teams to Pearce teams so that they can show their ability to the Wellington selectors. We believe that the very best players will come through no matter which environment they are in and that with a 12 team competition more players will continue to play over a longer period as they see the chance to play at a higher level each Saturday. We evidence this in that two seasons ago over half the Wellington Firebirds came from Hazlett teams. In our own case we are always appreciative of James Franklin staying with Collegians despite his gaining higher honours, and we thank James for this loyalty. We must again congratulate James on his cementing a place in the Black Caps and on his maiden test century.

At a recent meeting of Club Chairman 75% voted in favour of a 12 team competition and the matter is now with Cricket Wellington. As an aside Auckland have already agreed to change to a 12 team competition this coming season, but in a slightly different form to that we have proposed.

Coaching

For some year's now Collegians have put an emphasis on junior coaching and the 2005/06 season we stepped this up by engaging the services of Gloucestershire professional, Ian Fisher, as Principal Club coach. This role included coordinating the Junior Club coaching program, where he was ably assisted by Garrick Sutherland and Senthuran Selvaratnam, and also by Dilip Deva, who very successfully ran the Nursery Grade on Saturday mornings with the assistance of Amy Burgess. Dilip also stepped into the breach when Ian returned early to the UK. We must also congratulate Dilip for gaining his level 1 coaching certificate and I encourage others to follow suit. Somewhere along the way in all this Garrick also found time to open the bowling and bowl the most overs for the seniors for season and take 41 wickets at a very good 12.76 average.

We were also we involved with Cricket Wellington in running a Coaching Development project around a number of secondary schools in Wellington and I must thank Garrick for the work and effort he put into this, with the help of others such a Greg Haines, Amy Burgess, Sally Morrison and Dilip. Cricket Wellington have decided to step up this project in 2006/07 as way of encouraging cricket in secondary schools and hopefully retaining more players though into senior cricket after secondary school, and Collegians have been selected as one of the 4 clubs for the enhance version of this programme, which again this year will be run by Garrick and Dilip. Thanks guys.

In 2005/06 we ran pre season training programmes at the Cricket Academy for both senior and junior players right down through the club and we are doing so again this year. While in 2005/06 we employed more professional coaching resources than ever before, with most sides receiving the assistance of a professional coach, I cannot not thank all those parent coaches and managers who provide coaching and administration right down through all the junior teams. We are indebted to them for their sustained commitment and enthusiasm to the Club.

Our Junior Club remains one of the strongest in Wellington both by numbers, quality of administration and through members representing Wellington at various levels and tournaments and there is a comprehensive report on the Junior Club later in this Annual Report. However, I must congratulate the junior committee for the very professional way they run their operations.

Financial Position

The Club had another excellent year financially (not quite as good as last year), with a surplus of \$13,751 (last year \$23,479). Both the Senior and Junior Clubs recorded surpluses of \$2,846 (\$12,355) and \$10,562 (\$11,124) respectively.

The financial statements and explanations at set out more fully later in this report, but part of the explanation of the drop in surplus for the Senior club was a drop in total grants received of \$5,397.

Just as much effort was put into trying to secure funding however as a much tighter regime on the level of grants given to sports club by the 'pub' charities means we have received less this financial year as each grant was cut back from the amount applied for. 'Pub' charity grants have been a hobby horse of mine in recent annual reports and all New Zealand sports clubs need to be vigilant and concerned about legislative changes being proposed each year. With the banning of smoking in pubs, drink driving, the amount of gaming money is reducing each year and there are more groups targeting these funds, as well as additional compliance costs. The net effect is fewer dollars being sort by more and more. In the bigger picture sport is good for the community as a whole as through exercise people remain healthier and through sports clubs people build shelf esteem and community sprit, which helps reduce crime and other social concerns.

Thanks and Acknowledgements

Having said that we wish to thank NZ Community Trust and the Lion Foundation for their grants without which clubs like ours would not survive and develop cricket. A lot of our grant money goes towards coaching, especially junior coaching. We also wish to thank Cricket Wellington who also provided a coaching grant and GT Nissan, Wellington, who provided a car the season for Ian Fisher to enable him to carry out his coaching duties.

I would also like to thank Wholly Bagels for their support during the past season and all our other donors and supporters listed at the end of this Annual Report.

I also want to particularly thank Dilip for all his hard work in various roles within the club – club captain, bar and clubrooms manager, junior coach, gear steward and the guardian of club traditions. Every club needs people like Dilip and to further acknowledge Dilip's contribution to the Club I have awarded him the Martin Luckie Trophy for the Best Club Member for the past season.

I also want to acknowledge the work of Nigel Royfee who has been the Convenor of the Junior Committee for the past four years and done a great job. I also want to thank Emma Marriot who is standing down as Secretary after two different terms, before and after her overseas experience (and we have a fine replacement in Nick Whittington) and to Ryan Standish, who is standing down as Treasurer, to go on his OE, and as yet we do not have a replacement – so hands up.

I also want thank Brett Windley for his advice and assistance as President over the past two years and my thanks to all the other committee members such as Mark Burroughs (also as senior captain last season who has gone off on his OE) for their contributions.

After 8 seasons (4 as Treasurer and 4 as Chairman) I have decided that I am going to stand down this year from the Committee and as part of our succession planning Glen Neal has agreed to take up the role of Chairman. Glen has been chairing our strategy committee and has been a major contributor in preparing the strategic plan for the way forward as well working on and managing the 12 team senior competition proposal. I believe Glen will be an admirable and effective Chairman.

At the AGM I propose nominating Grant Coppersmith as a Life Member of the Club. Grant has had some 22 years of direct involvement with the Collegians Club and more detail that involvement is set out in the Notice of Meeting.

It is with a note of sadness that I must conclude with recording and noting the death of Mr D R Alexander one of our Life Members during the year.

Thank you all, Paddy Marra

CLUB CAPTAIN'S REPORT

Dilip Deva

This season the Club entered 7 Men's and 3 Women's teams. In the Men's grades the Club entered a Senior team (Hazlett Trophy), which is the second tier senior grade in the competition, plus a Senior 2, 2A, 2B, 2E and two sides in the 1A grade which is the one day grade.

In the Women's grades the Club entered Senior Women's and two Super Eight's teams.

At the pre-season training, lot's of hard work went into developing young cricketers, in particular C.J. Berry and Clinton Geeves who both had a sound season.

The main objective for the season was to win the Hazlett Trophy and get back into Pearce Cup. I believe our Senior Side got off to a poor start which in the end result may have cost them winning the Championship as the play off for the promotion into Pearce Cup against Naenae was abandoned due to the weather and as result Naenae with most points were promoted into Pearce Cup.

There were no grades winners this season. Best performances came from Senior Men's they were place second overall.

Representative Honours: James Franklin New Zealand ODI's and Test Team and Wellington Firebirds; Taraia Robin and Dave Rankin fringe Wellington players both trained with Wellington Firebirds; Elizabeth Scurr; Wellington Blaze, Sally Morrison; Manager Wellington Blaze, Amy Burgess; Wellington Development Team, Priya Patel; Wellington U18.

Acknowledgements: Thank you to all the sponsors DB Breweries Ltd, Wholly Bagel, New Zealand Community Trust, Lion Foundation, GT City Nissan.

Special thanks to Brett Windley (President) and Paddy Marra (Chairman). Paddy is stepping down from the Management Committee after some eight year's on the committee as Treasurer (4 years) and Chairman (4 years), Thank you Paddy.

Thank you to Ryan Standish is unavailable for re-election as a Treasurer. He is heading off to U.K on his OE, Also to Nigel Royfee Junior Club Convenor who will be stepping down as a convenor at the end of the year.

Thank you to all team captains. They have all done a wonderful job. In the upcoming season Senior Men's team will have a new captain, with Nick Whittington captaining the side, as the former captain Mark Burroughs has headed off overseas on an OE.

I thought the Club had a successful season and I look forward to the upcoming season.

Championship Placing						
Senior Men's	2nd					
Senior Women	5th equal					
Senior Two	7th					
2A						
2B	3rd					
2E	4th					
1A Collegians A	3rd					
1A Collegians B	4th					
Super 8 Div 1	6th					
Super 8 Div 2	6th					

COLLEGIANS SENIOR MEN'S TEAM REPORT

Mark Burroughs

2005/2006 – a year of change, success and frustration for the senior side.

First of all change, after long serving captain Scott (Monty) McHardy called it a day after the 'stork' dropped off the third child, I was charged with leading the team. Prospective squad members were asked to assemble in July, where some real soul searching was done, and it was decided by all, that this season was going to have to be a focussed one for Collegians.

A large group of players toiled hard on cold Sunday nights down at the Westpac Stadium, and with the preseason wrapping up with an enjoyable weekend in Masterton in which we comfortably beat a Wairarapa Selection with a smattering of rep players.

The season proper started with 3 games on artificial, which didn't yield any points, a disappointing start against which can only be described as less fancied opposition, including a couple of bizarre games at Fraser park, where both teams were 8 down for 20-odd at different stages! Another one day loss to University at Kelburn Park and we were starting to wonder if all those cold Sunday nights up at the stadium were worth it!

We knew deep down however, that we were better than that, and then a crucial toss on a green seamer at Kilbirnie Park sparked us into life in what would see us unbeaten throughout the balance of the season. A superb bowling effort and a 10 wicket win that day was followed by another convincing performance at Nairnville Park v Onslow, and then for our 1st game at "The Home of Cricket" against a previously unbeaten Naenae.

We hit the two dayers with a lot of confidence, and a bowling line up that we knew could bowl out any side in the competition cheaply. We had Johnsonville 1st up and only a stubborn Luke Woodcock holding the game to a draw. Leading into Christmas a character building win against a handy University side on a green wicket gave us a lot of confidence heading into a well deserved break.

After the break some outstanding performances saw two day wins versus Taita and an illtempered win against Naenae. Both wins were lead by bowling efforts that can only be described as superb.

A rained out Saturday unfortunately created a one day fixture against a very weak Onslow side, with the two day points not being available possibly being costly. Next cab off the rack was Upper Valley and in one of the most outstanding batting displays ever seen on Anderson Park set us up for what was to be sure to be a convincing win.

The display saw Taraia Robin and David (Dr) Rankin put on 220 runs in 29 overs, with Taraia (subject to confirmation) scoring the highest individual score on record at Anderson Park, his 168 was wonderful viewing (unless you were an UV player scurrying down to Bowen Street that is).

Unfortunately the rain robbed us of maximum points in that fixture also. We were not to be denied in our final game against East's however, an innings win after Taraia had broken a tail enders arm and forcing them to declare without making us bat twice.

The points were enough to put us in a final, a new addition to the Hazlett Trophy and Pearce Cup this season. In second place only four points behind Naenae a team that we had beaten twice during the year.

The final scheduled at Petone Rec. was a three day affair (a first for many of the boys), a great opportunity for Collegians to realise their season dream of Pearce Cup. The weather

conspired against us again however with all 3 days unplayable due to rain. Another year in the Hazlett Trophy was not what this team deserved, as all who played us believed what we ourselves knew, we were the 'best' and deserved a crack at the top grade. There is no doubt next year will again bring change, all for the better I am sure of!!

The Senior Squad this year also had the honour of being awarded 'Baggy Caps' for representation. It was decided by the committee that after a player had played 12 games they were to be awarded a cap. Obviously there have been many past players who would qualify and would most certainly deserve the 'Baggy', however it was viewed by all as an opportunity to look forward and any player who played from this point on and had played the allotted games would be presented one.



Dilip presenting Gacka with his "Baggy" at Anderson Park

Players awarded a cap this year:

Christopher Berry Julian Brown Mark Burroughs Ian Fisher James Franklin Nishant Goyat Greg Haines Taraia Robin Sethil Selveratnam Rod Setford Garrick Sutherland Nick Whittington

Players who had qualifying games were:

Clinton Butler: (eligible next game played) David Rankin: (eligible next game played) David Sewell: (8) Jamie Tong: (3)

Glen Eglinton: (2) Brent Maguire: (1) Clinton Geeves: (1) Aaron McKenzie: (1)



The Seniors in their new "Baggies" at Anderson Park

Quick list of highlights and special mentions for the season:

CJ Berry: Contributed week in week out if not on, then off the field, big improver with a solid base to hopefully push on and really put some numbers up on the board in future seasons.

Julian Brown: Bowled some great spells, always consistent on line and hitting that off stump bail, highlights include getting two in a row against Naenae in his first over, and obviously the famous 'Ronaldo' strike over the boundary in front of the Ando Clubrooms from mid off.

Clinton Butler: Bowled some excellent out swinging spells, sometimes without luck. Batting improved and even got stranded a few times. Fielding needs to be strengthened to make his case to be in the team week in week out.

Ian Fisher: Green seaming wickets never help, but every time Fish was called on he wrapped the tail up with some very economical spells and those crucial wickets. Hard grafted innings at University helped the season turn the corner.

James Franklin: Contributed a couple of Cameo's with the Bat. James has now cemented his place in the Blacks Caps, so unfortunately I think we will see less of him leading the way for Collegians on Anderson Park.

Nishant Goyat: A year of great change for Nishy, now married and a proud home owner. He returned to India for the first time since he had been in NZ. So a year of interruptions cricket wise, highlight being a match winning century v Naenae at Naenae.

Greg Haines: Season stalled early by a gammy hand, however contributed at every opportunity on and off the field, couple of miracle one hander's that had the boys (and himself) gasping. Depth in batting maybe robbed him of opportunities, has ability to bat higher with application.

David Rankin: New to the club. Contributed with both bat and ball, and was outstanding in the field. Catch at Naenae matching the famous Milo ad. Leader and thinking cricketer, an asset to any team.

Taraia Robin: New to the club. Bowled with pace and fire but lacked some control in the one dayers, once comfortable in the team, the performances became a lot more consistent. Produced some quality batting performances, with the 165 an outstanding performance.

Senthil Selvaratnam: Green wickets saw limited opportunities in the top side for Senty this year. Big improvement in fielding and batting, has began to add further strings to his bow, the more cricket he plays the better he will get.

Rod Setford: Always willing when called upon, Rod personifies the 'Club Man'. Has ability to be there every week, and got us off to a string of solid starts without getting a real big score.

David Sewell: New to the Club. Had limited opportunities, but has the ability to be a handy change bowler and mid-lower order bat. Hopefully availability can be more consistent in years to come and he can settle into his work.

Garrick Sutherland: Leader of the bowling unit grew in stature and bowled some brilliant spells. Reaped the benefit of having a fitter body, the mind did seem to follow! Has not gone unnoticed by Wellington Cricket!

Nick Whittington: The 20/20 really kicked him into life with a 100 in the last game v East's the obvious highlight. Contributed well all over the park.

Others:

Glen Eglinton: Promising player and talented athlete stepped up when required.

Clinton Geeves: 1st taste of the big time, winter work really helped his game.

Brent Maguire: Stepped up when required, winter work helped improvement with the bat. **Aaron McKenzie**: Consistent player for Reserves, great addition to the Club.

Jamie Tong: Always stepped up when asked, 'Team First' attitude always appreciated.

			Not					
	Games	Innings	Outs	Runs	Best	100's	50's	Ave
Taraia Robin	14	12	2	317	165	1	0	31.70
Mark Burroughs	14	17	1	303	50	0	1	18.94
Nick Whittington	12	14	1	265	119	1	0	20.38
Nishant Goyat	9	10	1	239	129	1	0	26.56
lan Fisher	11	13	2	202	70	0	1	18.36
David Rankin	11	10	2	179	91	0	1	22.38
Rod Setford	4	6	0	128	58	0	1	21.33
CJ Berry	13	13	1	127	20	0	0	10.58
Garrick Sutherland	14	12	2	88	33	0	0	8.80
Julian Brown	10	8	2	86	36	0	0	14.33
James Franklin	3	3	3	85	40	0	0	-
Greg Haines	11	10	0	80	28	0	0	8.00
David Sewell	8	8	1	62	21	0	0	8.86
Clinton Butler	8	5	3	42	17	0	0	21.00
Senthil Selveratnam	8	6	2	36	24	0	0	9.00
Jamie Tong	3	2	0	30	23	0	0	15.00
Glen Eglinton	2	2	0	21	17	0	0	10.50
Clinton Geeves	1	1	0	16	16	0	0	16.00
Brent Maguire	1	1	0	9	9	0	0	9.00
Andrew Smith	1	1	0	4	4	0	0	4.00
Aaron McKenzie	1	1	0	1	1	0	0	1.00

Combined Batting Averages (2005/2006)

	<u> </u>				Total				
Mat	ches	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets	Ave	RPO	5WI	10WM
Garrick Sutherland	14	189	42	523	41	12.76	2.77	2	0
Julian Brown	10	111	20	411	33	12.45	3.69	2	1
David Rankin	11	130	31	267	31	8.61	2.05	2	0
lan Fisher	11	93	19	322	20	16.10	3.46	2	0
Taraia Robin	14	114	17	416	20	20.80	3.65	0	0
Clinton Butler	8	48	13	157	9	17.44	3.27	0	0
Senthil									
Selveratnam	8	18	4	78	5	15.60	4.33	0	0
Nick Whittington	12	12	1	31	3	10.33	2.58	0	0
David Sewell	8	7	0	41	0	-	5.86	0	0
Glen Eglinton	2	6	0	44	0	-	7.33	0	0
James Franklin	3	6	1	12	0	-	2.00	0	0
Rod Setford	4	1	0	4	0	-	4.60	0	0

Bowling Averages (2005/2006)

WOMENS CRICKET

Senior Women

The Women's team started the several personnel changes after a couple of key players including last year's captain, Amanda Cooper and the young and promising Hana Bedford, left the club just before the season started. This substantially weakened the Senior team and left them struggling in the competition despite some valiant efforts by Elizabeth Scurr, who scored the most runs for the season, and Annabel O'Reilly, who took the most wickets. As usual there were contributions from Amy Burgess, Sally Morrison and Emma Marriott.

Congratulations go to Elizabeth Scurr for making the Wellington Blaze and once again to Sally Morrison for her management of the Blaze, and also to Amy Burgess for selection in the Wellington Development Team and to Priya Patel for selection in the Wellington U18.

SUPER 8s – Division 1

Tania McCoard (Captain)

The super 8's this year had a great start with approximately 30 odd girls wanting to play Super 8's for the club - so by the start of the season we managed to field 2 teams - one in each Division. The Div 1 team had a mixture of old hands and completely new players who had never played cricket before, with both teams starting the season with a completely new playing strip complete with Collegian's logo, which attracted many admiring comments. Not only did we look fantastic we were also protected from the sun with snazy sun protected material (not that we get much sun during our Wellington Summer season - wind protection required instead!). But unfortunately that is about the only good thing about Div 1's season this year - although we started out well, by the end of the season we were struggling to find players to field a team with Phil Gunn calling in her mother for one game - way to go Mum! Took one for the side!

Results were in the downward direction from last year with coming last in the table with only 4 wins of the season - Onslow taking out the Division (surprise surprise!). However we had many stand out performances within the team with Lenoka constantly retiring on 50, and taking most wickets as well - fantastic all round performance again from her. Our newbies did extremely well getting thrown into Div 1 improving game from game, and our most consistent lynch pin for the team Phil Gunn turning up for every practice and every game always ready to give 100% and always pulling in players when desperately needed. We can but look to improve next season.

SENIOR 2, 2A and 2B

No reports received.

2E THE FALCONHAWKE

Owen Mann (Captain)

Having climbed the ranks of the 2004/2005 2D competition to the gloriously giddying heights of mid-table mediocrity, the FalconHawke found itself subjected to what must have been some sort of administration error in cricket's corridors of power, and hence required to compete in the newly formed 2E grade, (the lowest form of two-day competition in the Western World) for 2005/2006.

Undeterred, the brave men of FalconHawke prepared for the season ahead of them with what is becoming the traditional pre-season sparring practice with the Legends at Grenada. The gorse was in flower, Chapman hit a six, and the FalconHawke just lost, despite clearly being the better-looking team.

Buoyed by our success we went out and wasted two teams in a row. Then we drew a two dayer. Then Easts wasted us. And so on. It was clearly going to be a hotly contested grade with most teams able to beat every other team.

To summarise, FalconHawke scored 3066 runs, which was a record for the most runs we scored all season. We returned 27 centuries. 3 of these were actual centuries, and not made up for the purposes of this report, scored by Jon Duffy, Stephen McDowall, and the FalconHawke's Man of the Season, Rajesh Naknammarra. Cal Evans bowled at roughly two-thirds the speed of light throughout the season, but it was McDowall that returned the season's best figures of 5 - 36 against Easts. We won all our games except for the two draws, four losses, and one tie, which meant that we finished about third. Or fourth. Or something. We had ensured our mid-table respectability by the end of the season, with some stellar victories, and even more stellar losses.

It was a season that built on the solid foundations laid in 2004/2005, and we look forward to another cracker next summer, now that Wightman, Ballard, Chapman, and Reynolds-MacLean have all been sent overseas for disciplinary reasons and will not feature in 2006/2007. Overall we had a thoroughly enjoyable season, whether on the field, or leaning precariously over it from the balcony at the clubbies, drinking from the pints of victory and chalices of defeat. To all at Collegians, Ark, Ark, from the men of FalconHawke.

See you in 2006/2007, possibly from 2F.

THE 1AA'S

Gavin "Pontoon" Miller

An excellent season for the 1AA's overall, with some great results and dogged battles against the top sides, and although we did not manage to defend the title this season, it resulted in a 2^{nd} equal placing for the 05/06 competition.

The 2nd placing was one we still had to battle for, as we had a couple of losses in the first half of the season that put the team on the back foot with regards to chasing the top side. But a solid performance in the second half of the season, including a win over the competition leaders allowed us to put some pressure on the top of the table, right until late in the piece, a testament to the team's application on the field.

The 05/06 season batting award went to Roger Kinsella, who scored 456 runs at an average of 38.00. This included a century (110) and two half centuries in 13 innings. Roger proved to be the mainstay in the teams batting order, but was not alone in performing with the bat. The ever-youthful Dr Paul French was second with 311 runs (at a 28.27 ave) with a top score of 114. Third was Jason 'Jaz' Attewell with 284 runs at 20.29. Glen 'xSkip' Neal also shone with the blade – scoring 258 at 28.67 – including a top score of 112.

The bowling award went this season to a past regular who burst back onto the scene with a vengeance. Jason Aitofi, that cool customer with his left arm spin, bamboozled batting orders, taking 20 wickets in 11 matches, averaging 15.8 and best bowling of 5-14. Hot on his heels was a resurgent Rob Wilkinson. 'The Wookie' took 19 wickets this year at 21.2 average, best figures of 3-25. He bowled accurately all year and rarely took a hammering all season. Third on the bowling stats was the abrasive Jonnie Halstead. Mr Sandwiches at times showed sublime form especially early in the season - he took 11 wickets at 30.6, best figures of 3-40. Other notables were the ever reliable Roger Kinsella (9 wickets), the mercurial Rob McIver (9 wickets) and 'The Gimp' – Andy Graham – showing some late season form with his slow medium swing deliveries (6 wickets).

Highlights of the season included

- Rob McIver smashing the team to victory vs Thorndon. After being 94/7 Rob hit a searing 38no along with his able partner Cyril Mako (26) to get us to 170/8. The win seemed a long way away as the wickets tumbled, however Rob, Cyril (and a cool Scotty Brooker at the end) lead us home with 6 overs to spare. It wasn't so much a case of "getting out of jail", but more like a case of "kicking the lid off the coffin".
- Jason Aitofi and Rob Wilkinson battling it our right up until the last overs of the season to be the top wicket-taker of the season. Both took superb 3-fers in the final match. Jase the Ace pipping the Wookie by one wicket for the year.
- Our win over University at Johnsonville. This was by far the best team effort of the season, a game that saw us bat first and in deep trouble at 13/2 after 8 overs with openers in the hut. The pitch was a screamer and our boys were taking hits to the body. Frenchy and Jaz plundered the bowlers in a stunning batting display taking the score form 13/2 to 72/2 in the space of 5 overs! This included a 31 run over off the poor Uni opening bowler. Frenchy went on to score 114, and Aaron Trevean smashed 78 hard earned runs. This gave us 278/6. We went on to bowl Uni out for 125 with Dodge Kinsella taking 4-19, Wookie 3-25 and Gavin "Pontoon" Miller taking 1-6 from 5 overs. We also managed to keep Uni scoreless during the innings for 32 consecutive deliveries.
- We managed to stay unbeaten for the season against the Axemen!

We unfortunately lost one of our bowling kingpins this season – with the departure of Blair 'Shunter' Cloutman to Auckland. He had some great form with the bat and ball and is always a hard competitor. The team will miss Shunter's blunt sense of humour and his belligerent disregard for opposition bowling attacks. We wish him all the best in 'JafaLand'.

A good season overall and one that saw us carry on the great team efforts that won us the grade last year. The team is in great shape for the 06/07 season.

THE AXEMEN – COLLEGIANS 1A'B'

Ryan Standish

What a year for the mighty Axemen: 4th in the 1A grade as we clawed our way to our best finish yet.

This year was characterised - not by Bowser's catching, Box's calling, nor even by Pirie's ankle - but by our nuggetty batsmen supporting our 6-pronged pace attack.

Many a game was won on the back of Man-of-the-Year Duncan's wickets as he combined brutal seam movement with angry bounce. He was ably supported by Big Bird, whose class was a cut above, and Glenn, who struggled to buy wickets despite his yoyo-like control.

Fisher's raw pace rattled many and he took a 5-for against last season's champs. Stellios grabbed a 7-for in the best single bowling performance by an Axeman ever, as well as a 50 in the same game. And predictably, Rooter took his fair share of wickets this year with his trademark steak'n cheese.

The Box top-scored for the second season running and consistently was the glue in an otherwise patchy top-order batting display. When the batsmen were in form, none was more nuggetty than Richard and none more flowing than Handbrake.

Our middle order was solid with Damo and Glenn chipping in valuable runs. Glenn's 89 in the first game ended up as the top score of the season. Bowser found form with the bat and put on 150 with the Box against University, leaving the class of Pirie, Tommo and captain Big Bird on the sidelines.

We must also say goodbye to Rooter as he departs for overseas. A great club man, dependable bowler, surprisingly effective opening-bat and the last inaugural Axeman: we value your contribution Ryan, thanks.

What a great season – we can be proud of our cricketing exploits and off-field camaraderie. And that's who we are. We are the Axemen.

JUNIOR CLUB REPORT 2005/06

Nigel Royfee

SUMMARY

As a Junior Club our mission is to provide a positive and nurturing cricketing environment for all our Primary School players from Nursery grade right though to Premier level. To that end we actively seek to provide an unrivalled level of service and support for players and parents to ensure that their experience of cricket and Collegians is a rewarding one.

The 2005/06 season was again characterised by an active Committee, excellent organisation, a sound financial position, a high level of coaching support, and strong player and parent engagement.

Player numbers were on a par with 2004/05, and with 377 players and 32 teams Collegians retained its status as the largest junior cricket club in Wellington.

Highlights of the 2005/06 season included a continuation of the popular pre-season Spring training program at the Cricket Academy, the use of more professional coaches than ever before, the involvement of six teams in the Hawkes Bay January tournament, and a successful program of events including the Year 8 Leavers function, and the end of season prize-giving.

FINANCIALS

The 2005/06 season was another successful one in terms of securing grants to subsidise Club activities. New Zealand Community Trust grants, totalling over \$14,000, helped fund the pre-season Spring training and the purchase of team gear and balls. An additional \$5,000 was also secured to cover coaching costs as part of a joint application with the Senior Club.

We were also pleased that Wholly Bagels continued on as sponsor of the Player of the Season trophies and Player of the Day awards.

Responsible fiscal management meant that the Junior Club was able to report an operating surplus of \$9,843 for the 2005/06 season (before final reconciliation of coaching costs).

We are very conscious that grants are becoming increasingly difficult to secure, with charity gaming revenues dropping by at least 15% in 2005. Changes to gambling legislation in 2003 and the ban on smoking in pubs and clubs in December 2004 have been linked to the decline. As a consequence we have made it a key objective to build up sufficient reserves so that we can continue to maintain our level of services in future seasons in the likelihood of a falling off in grant funding.

JUNIOR COMMITTEE

The Junior Club is blessed with a very active and dedicated Committee, and I would like to thank all of them for the contributions they made in 2005/06.

I would like to take this opportunity to make a number of special mentions.

At the end of 2006 we will farewell Tony Dawbin who has been a longstanding Committee member and has provided invaluable services over the last few years in the role of Coaching Manager.

We are also very fortunate that Emma Lawler will continue on into her third season in the critical role of Junior Club Administrator, a role she performs very capably and enthusiastically.

I would also like to acknowledge the contributions made by our hardworking and committed Treasurer, Andy Fulbrook, and Hard Ball Coordinator, Graeme Sugden. Thanks also to Dilip Deva in his role as Gear Manager and for his expanding coaching responsibilities.

The 2005/06 Committee was made up of the following individuals:

Convenor	Nigel Royfee
Administrator	Emma Lawler
Treasurer	Andy Fullbrook
Senior Club Chairman	Paddy Marra
Gear Manager	Dilip Deva
Coaching Manager	Tony Dawbin
Hard Ball Coordinator/U12 Coordinator	Graeme Sugden
Girls Coordinator	Don Stevens
U11 Coordinator	Barry Davey
U10 Coordinator	Susan Laurenson
U9 Coordinator	Andy Kent
U8 Coordinator	Doug Martin
U7 (Milo Kiwi) Coordinator	Ross McElwain
Nursery (Milo Have a Go) Coordinator	Peter Newell
Website Coordinator	Charles Thompson
First Aid Coordinator	Lynne Bremner

MEMBERSHIP / TEAM STATISTICS

Player numbers in 2005/06 increased marginally, to 377 players. We typically have the largest number of teams of any Club in each age group grade, with the glaring exception being the U11 grade where we only fielded two teams.

Grade	# teams	# players	# girls	New members	Existing members
Premier	1	12	0	0	12
Colts	1	12	0	0	12
Under 14	2	25	2	1	24
Under 12	4	53	2	6	47
Under 11	2	25	0	1	24
Under 10	4	45	0	4	41
Under 9	6	69	7	12	57
Under 8	5	49	9	18	31
MILO Kiwi	5	45	6	25	20
MILO Have A Go	NA	35	2	34	1
Girls Hardball	1	13	13	1	12
Girls Softball	0	0	0	0	0
Total	32	377	40	101	281

SATURDAY COMPETITION GAMES

The emphasis for players in Primary School cricket has always been on participation, having fun, and improving skills. The main focus for our teams in the 2005/06 season was on involvement in the Wellington Club competition.

As a Junior Club we look to provide an environment which nurtures a broad base of young players, from high achievers to those whose attitudes are more social. Our mixed teams therefore include players at various levels of skill development and are pitched to attain a balance between the numbers of wins and losses.

TOURNAMENTS

The Club sent six teams to the Hawkes Bay tournament, one at U10, one at U11, and two at both U12 and U13, with the objective of providing as many players as possible with the opportunity to experience tournament play.

The top U12 and U13 sides were effectively the Colts and Premiers, and played in the tournament's A stream.

All teams were a credit to Collegians in terms of behaviour, sportsmanship, and performance.

Thank you to all the parents involved in the coaching and management of the teams.

COACHING

As always, we rely on parent coaches and managers to provide coaching and administration at the team level. We are indebted to them for their sustained commitment and enthusiasm.

As part of a program of engagement with parent coaches, a Coaches Briefing Session was held pre-season, and a Coaches Review session (to gather feedback) at season end.

In 2005/06 we employed more professional coaching resources than ever before, with most sides receiving the assistance of a professional coach on each of their practice nights. The Senior Club secured the services of Gloucestershire professional, Ian Fisher, who as part of his duties as Principal Club coach was in charge of coordinating the Junior Club coaching program. Two senior Collegians players, Garrick Sutherland and Senthuran Selvaratnam were recruited to assist Ian, and Dilip Deva very successfully ran the Nursery Grade on Saturday mornings with the assistance of Amy Burgess, and also stepped into the breach when Ian returned early to the United Kingdom.

In 2005/06 we again ran the pre season Spring Training programme at the Cricket Academy, which was open to all hard ball players in the Club. This proved to be a great success with over 120 players involved. The program ran on Saturdays & Sundays over an 8 week period during September and October 2005. Plans are already complete to run the sessions again in September/October this year.

PLAYER RECOGNITION

Prior to Christmas we farewelled our Year 8 players at the Year 8 Leavers function held at Anderson Park. The Graeme Hopping Cup, awarded to a Year 8 player who has displayed special qualities such as leadership and sportsmanship during the season, went to Luke McLeod.

For the fourth consecutive year the end of season prize-giving functions were all held at the clubrooms on the same day, Sunday April 2nd, with the various grades being divided into three sessions. The formal prize giving consisted of each player being presented with a certificate as a member of his or her team. Players of the season for each team were presented with trophies provided by Wholly Bagels.

The functions were well received and well attended by players and parents.

WEBSITE

Collegians have unquestionably the best junior cricket club website in Wellington. Thank you to Charles Thompson who does an outstanding job administering the site.

In 2005/06 the Honours Board continued to be a popular feature of the site along with the match reports and ground directories.

ACKNOWLEGEMENTS

My youngest son finishing Primary School at the end of the year will mark the end of my tenure as Convenor of the Junior Club. I have very much enjoyed my time on the Committee and as Convenor, and in particular I have taken great satisfaction in seeing the delight that young cricketers have in being part of the great game of cricket, and in being able to play a part, albeit small, in fostering that.

I have very much enjoyed working with the members of the Junior Club Committee and I wish the Committee and Club every success for the future. The Junior Club is in great shape and in good heart.

Finally, thank you to the Senior Club, whose Chairman, Paddy Marra, and other Committee members happily provide support and encouragement for the activities of the Junior Club.

INDIVIDUAL HONOURS

NEW ZEALAND

James Franklin

CRICKET WELLINGTON Representative Honours 2005/06

James Franklin – Wellington Firebirds Elizabeth Scurr –Wellington Blaze Amy Burgess – Wellington Women's' Development Squad Priya Patel - Wellington U19

CLUB AWARDS 2003/04

Martin Luckie Trophy - Best Club Member

Dilip Deva

Phoenix Cup – Best & Fairest Senior Player

David Rankin

RC Pope Mug - Best Senior Player

Taraia Robin - 317 runs and 20 wickets

Don Churchill Cup - Best Senior Reserve Player

Martin Seddon

John Rose Memorial Cup - Hardest Working Player

C J Berry

Norm Bibby Memorial Cup - Most Promising Player

Jeremy Riddell

James Trophy - Senior Cricketer of the year

Garrick Sutherland - 41 wickets

Committee Cup - Best Committee Person

Ryan Standish

Grey Cup - Most 2 Day Runs

Jeremy Riddell - 591

Grey Cup - Most 2 Day Wicket

Garrick Sutherland - 41

Grey Cup - Most 1 Day Runs

Roger Kinsella - 470

Grey Cup - Most 1 Day Wickets

D Ashton - 29

Ina Lamason Cup - Most Women's Runs

Elizabeth Scurr

Ina Lamason Cup - Most Women's Wickets

Annabel O'Reilly

Penny Kinsella Cup - Best Women's Contribution

Emma Marriott

HONOURS BOARD PERFORMANCES 2004/05 SEASON

Taraia Robin Nishant Goyat	Senor Men Senior Men	165 129
Nick Whittington	Senior Men	119
Jeremy Riddell	2 A	172*, 110, 591runs
L Cantwell Gollan		150*
Al Hill	2 B	500+ runs
Jon Duffy	2 E	100+
Stephen McDowall	2 E	100+
Rajesh Naknammarra	2 E	100+

Other Notable Performances during 2003/04 (Not eligible for Honours Board but are hereby acknowledged)

Steve Dimakus	1AB (Axemen)	7 for 45
Dennis Sim		7 for 18

TREASURERS REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TREASURER'S REPORT

Ryan Standish

The surplus of \$13,751 represents another good financial result for the Club. Both the Senior and Junior Clubs recorded surpluses of \$2,846 and \$10,562 respectively.

Senior Club

Income

There was a decrease in income received by the Senior club of \$4,335. The main reasons for this were:

- A drop in the total grants received of (\$5,397). Just as much effort was put into trying to secure funding however a much tighter regime on the level of grants given to sports club by charities means we have received less this financial year.
- Trading Income over the bar was steady with an increase on 2005 of \$\$277. This is particularly good given we had a very healthy year over the bar last year. The implementation of an Eftpos system definitely helped to ensure ease of use for club members. Many thanks to Dilip for all his work on the bar.
- There was a slight decrease in subscriptions received of (\$846) with subscription levels staying the same.

Expenditure

There was also an increase in expenditure of \$5,583 compared to 2005. The main reasons for this were:

- \$16,282 was spent on Coaches Payments for the financial year. This was to do with coaching for many of the Junior club teams as well (note a reconciliation was completed to ensure both the Junior and Senior clubs met their share of costs here). This was partly paid for by grants from Cricket Wellington and NZ Community Trust.
- There was a cost in 2006 for Preseason Training. We received a grant to partly fund this.
- Otherwise there have been some smaller increases in costs for the day to day running of the club. This was offset by the ability to get grants for some day to day operational expenditure such as insurance which Lion foundation funded.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Financial Performance For the Year ended 31 May 2006

	2006	2005
	\$	\$
Income		
Donations	406	275
Interest Income	314	1,068
Pavilion Donations	578	724
Pavilion Trading Income	12,449	12,172
Sponsorship & Grants	29,853	35,250
Subscriptions – Senior Club	17,931	13,507
Subscriptions – Junior Club	12,661	20,101
Other Income – Senior Club	3,011	609
Other Income – Junior Club	37,096	35,052
Total Income	114,298	118,759
Expenditure		
Administration & Management	704	2,505
Coaches Payments	16,562	8,296
Cricket Balls	6,004	6,572
Clothing	2,902	6,551
Communications & Annual Report	60	148
Depreciation	4,849	4,799
Ground Fees	9,145	11,443
Pavilion Direct Expenses	7,785	5,531
Pavilion Trading Expenses	3,460	4,444
Preseason Training	3,915	-
Other Expenses – Senior Club	1,319	962
Other Expenses – Junior Club	44,122	44,029
Total Expenditure	100,828	95,280
Operating Surplus (Loss)	13,470	23,479
Add Accumulated Funds Brought Forward	53,086	29,607
Accumulated Funds Carried Forward	66,556	53,086

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Financial Position As at 31 May 2006

Reserves	2006 \$	2005 \$
Accumulated Funds - Senior Club Accumulated Funds - Junior Club Sponsorship Fund AD Grey Memorial Fund	31,177 35,379 32,850 <u>60,397</u> 159,802	28,612 24,474 34,711 55,480 143,277
Represented By		
Fixed Assets (Note 2)	9,104	10,912
Term Deposits with NBNZ (Note 3)	87,538	80,992
Current Assets		
Bank Income in Arrears Prepayments GST Refund Gear Stocks Cricket Ball Stocks Bar Stocks	53,680 - 460 735 - 8,114 <u>171</u> 63,160	45,600 - 460 1,520 644 6,605 120 54,949
Total Assets	159,802	146,853
Current Liabilities		
Sundry Creditors	<u> </u>	<u>3,576</u> 3,576
Net Assets Represented By Reserves	159,802	143,277

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Sponsorship Fund For the Year ended 31 May 2006

	2006 \$	2005 \$
Income Interest	1,129	-
Expenditure Scholarships	2,990	-
Net Income For The Year	(1,861)	-
Add Opening Balance	34,711	34,711
Balance As At 31 May 2006	32,850	34,711

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. A D Grey Memorial Fund For the Year ended 31 May 2006

	2006 \$	2005 \$
Income Interest	5,417	3,415
Expenditure Scholarships	500	3,000
Net Income For The Year	4,917	415
Add Opening Balance	55,480	55,065
Balance As At 31 May	60,397	55,480

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year ended 31 May 2006

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

- A General Accounting Policies The Club was registered as Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated) with the Registrar of Incorporated Societies in December 1980. Financial Statements, which have been adopted by members at an Annual General Meeting and subject to audit, are required to be placed on public file with the Registrar on an annual basis.
- (i) These financial statements have been prepared with application of generally accepted accounting practices as defined in the Financial Reporting Act 1993.
- (ii) The principles of measurement and reporting of financial performance and position under the historical cost method has been applied.

B Specific Accounting Policies The following specific accounting policies which significantly affect the measurement of financial performance and position have been applied:

)	Depreciation	
	The principal rates of depreciation used were as follows:	
	Equity in Pavilion Lease	Nil
	Gear	50% in year 1
		25% in years 2 and 3
	Pavilion Equipment	10% diminishing value
	Pavilion Alterations	10% diminishing value

(ii) Sundry Debtors

Debtors and subscriptions in arrears are stated at estimated realisable value.

(iii) Stock

(i)

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

2. Fixed Assets

	Cost \$	Accumulated Depreciation \$	2006 Net Book Value \$	2005 Net Book Value \$
Equity in Pavilion	4,425	-	4,425	4,425
Pavilion Alterations	17,765	17,330	435	483
Pavilion Equipment	2,275	1,705	570	480
Covers	2,210	1,243	967	1,519
Playing Gear	13,191	10,535	2,656	3,954
Trophies	51	0	51	51
Total	\$39,917	\$30,813	\$9,104	\$10,912

The playing gear represented above relates only to the Senior Club. The Junior Club does not capitalise playing gear. All Junior Club playing gear is instead expensed in the year it is purchased.

3. Term Deposits

Surplus funds and the funds representing the A D Grey Memorial Fund have been placed on deposit with The National Bank of New Zealand. At balance date there were two deposits earning 6.25%, one rolling over at 3 month intervals and the other at 4 month intervals.

Audit Report

To the Members of Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated)

I have audited the financial report on pages 1 to 5. The financial report provides information about the past financial performance of the Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated) and its financial position as at 31 May 2006. This information is stated in accordance with the accounting policies set out on page 4.

Club Committee Responsibilities

The Club Committee is responsible for the preparation of a financial report which fairly reflects the financial position of the club as at 31 May 2006 and of the results of operations for the year ended 31 May 2006.

Auditor's Responsibilities

It is my responsibility to express an independent opinion on the financial report presented by the Club Committee and report my opinion to you, the members.

Basis of Opinion

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. It also includes assessing:

- * the significant estimates and judgements made by the Club Committee in the preparation of the financial report.
- whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated) circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

I conducted my audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in New Zealand except that my work was limited as explained below. I planned and performed the audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I considered necessary in order to provide sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial report is free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error. In forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of the information in the financial report.

Apart from my role as auditor I am a coach of a team in the Junior Club, whose financial results are incorporated in these accounts.

Qualified Opinion

Control over revenues prior to being recorded is limited, and there are no practical audit procedures to determine the effect of this limited control.

In this respect alone I have not obtained all the information and explanations that I have required.

In my opinion, except for adjustments that might have been found to be necessary had I been able to obtain sufficient evidence concerning revenues, the financial report fairly reflects the results of operations for the year ended 31 May 2006.

In my opinion the financial report fairly reflects the financial position of the Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated) as at 31 May 2006.

My audit report was completed on 3 August 2005 and my qualified opinion is expressed at that date.

Graeme Sugden B.Com CA Wellington

Gratefully acknowledge the support, sponsorship and donations from the following:

R C Pope G C Carruthers L Macer T Barber C C Monigatti D Wilkinson D B Breweries Ltd Kilbirnie Sports Lion Foundation NZ Community Trust G T Nissan, Wellington Kiwi Trophies R&R Electrical Al Hobman Signs Wholly Bagels